NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Delaware County Electric Cooperative, Inc. will be held Tuesday, June
27, 2023, at 5:00 pm at the Co-op’s office, 5 North Depot Street, Delhi, New York 13753 to act on the following agenda.

VI.

VL.

VIII.

XI.

XIl.

XII.

XIV.

XV.
XVI.

AGENDA

Opening Business:

a.
b.
c.

Call to Order
Roll Call - Determination of Quorum
Adoption of Agenda

Consent Agenda:

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Minutes of May 23, 2023 Regular Meeting
New Memberships

Bad Debt Collection Report & Resolution
Director Compensation

Corporate Calendar

Unclaimed Patronage Capital Resolution

Review of Policies:

a. Capital Credits Allocation Policy
b. Pandemic Related Infectious Disease Policy
c. Documentation Policy
Announcement of Upcoming Policies to be Reviewed:
a. TBD
Review of Bylaw changes
a. Red-line markup of bylaws with changes for informational purposes

CEO/General Manager John Gasstrom’s Report:

a.
b.
c.

HFTCCs through NYISO
Demand line item being added for testing to Director’s bills
Organizational update

CFO Cannizzaro’s Monthly Report:

a.
b.

May Financials
Form 990

Operations Manager Sullivan’s Monthly Report:

a.

Quarterly Tree Crew Update

Manager of System Planning, Job Training & Safety Small’s Monthly Report:

CSA Linehan’s Monthly Report:

a.

Annual Meeting discussion

Director/Staff Association Reports:

a.
b.
c.
d.

DCEC at the Meredith Dairy Fest, June 10t & 11t 10am-5pm — Meredith, NY
RESMA Summer Meeting, June 7-9, 2023 — South Carolina

NYAPP Meeting, June 16, 2023 - Zoom

Youth Tour, June 18-23, 2023 — Washington DC

New Business:

a.

Assign NRECA & NYSRECA Voting Delegates

Future Business:
DCEC Storm Preparation Advocacy Group Meeting, July 11, 2023 - location TBD

a.
b.

e ~oa

DCEC Regular Board Meeting, Tuesday, 07/25/2023 @ 5pm
i. Fleet update report to Board

[packet page 1]

[packet pages 2-5]
[packet page 6]
[packet pages 7-8]
[packet page 9]
[packet page 10]

[packet page 11]

[packet pages 12-14]
[packet pages 15-16]
[packet pages 17-19]

[packet pages 20-21]
[packet pages 22-45]

[packet page 46]
[packet pages 47-53]

[packet page 54]
[handout]
[handout]

[packet page 55]
[presentation]

[packet page 56]

[presentation]

NYSRECA Annual Meeting, July 27, 2023 — The Y at Watson Woods, 9620 Dry Run Road, Painted

Post, NY 14870
Videorecording of Annual Meeting sections — August 1st & 2nd — DCEC HQ
NRECA Regional Meetings 1&4, September 6-8, 2023 — Richmond, VA

DCEC’s 79t Annual Meeting, September 15, 2023 — Delaware Academy, Delhi, NY

NEAEC Annual Meeting, October 9-13, 2023 — Newport, RI
i. Board checks in on October 9, 2023

i Risk Oversight, The Board’s Role in Risk Management 921.1 NRECA training, October 10,

2023

Executive Session:

Adjournment:



Delaware County Electric Cooperative
Board Meeting Minutes
May 23, 2023

l. Opening Business: The regular monthly meeting of the Board of Directors of the Delaware
County Electric Cooperative, Inc. was held May 23, 2023 at the Co-op’s office, 5 North Depot
Street, Delhi, New York.

A. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 5:10 p.m. by President Pick.

B. Roll Call - Determination of Quorum:

Stephen Oles
Edward Pick Jr.
Paul Menke
Laurie Wehmeyer
Steve Burnett
Jeffrey Russell

W U © U UV T© T©

Edward Furgol

DCEC staff members that participated in-person were, DCEC’s CEO/General
Manager John Gasstrom, DCEC’s Operations Manager Ryan Sullivan, CSA Janelle
Linehan, and Manager of Systems Planning, Job Training & Safety, James Small.
DCEC'’s Legal Counsel Jeffrey Clark from Livingston Associates participated via
phone conference. Line Foreman, Mike Pietrantoni, was present to give an
update on the Line Crew.

C. Adoption of Agenda: A motion was made by Director Burnett to adopt the agenda.

The motion was seconded by Treasurer Menke. The motion passed.

Il. Consent Agenda: A motion was made to approve the consent agenda as presented by
Treasurer Menke. The motion was seconded by Secretary Wehmeyer. The motion passed.

[ll. Annual Meeting kick-off with Review and Discussion of Bylaw changes
Several By-law changes were presented. Directors requested changes to be summarized for
June Board Meeting.

IV. Line Foreman Mike Pietrantoni to give Line crew update

Discussed pole rejects and replacements and crew being busy with 3-4 appointments per week.



V. Policies:
a. Absentee Ballot Policy

A motion was made to approve the policy by Director Burnett. The motion was
seconded by Director Furgol. The motion passed.

b. Compensation for Board of Directors Policy

A motion was made to approve the policy by Director Oles. The motion was
seconded by Treasurer Menke. The motion passed.

c. Director Qualifications Policy

A motion was made to approve the policy with removing 1-6 and to reference Article
IV, Section 2 of the By-laws instead by Secretary Wehmeyer. The motion was
seconded by Director Furgol. The motion passed.

d. Member Participation in Annual Meeting Policy

A motion was made to approve the policy with additional changes by Vice President
Russell. The motion was seconded by Director Burnett. The motion passed.

VI. Announcement of Upcoming Policies to be Reviewed:

a. Documentation Policy — Draft of new policy was presented for Director
awareness for June’s Board Meeting.

VIl. CEO/General Manager John Gasstrom’s Report:

CEO Gasstrom discussed government relations and outside organizations, power technology,
grants, rate design and community interaction.

a. Historic Fixed Price Transmission Congestion Contracts (HFTCCs) through
NYISO — CEO gave an update on HFTCC's.

b. Demand line item being added for testing to Director’s bills — CEO discussed
progress on rate project and pilot progress.

VIIIl. CFO Cannizzaro’s Monthly Report:

a. April Financials — CEO Gasstrom reviewed preliminary financials. Final reports
will be emailed to Directors.



IX. Operations Manager Sullivan’s Monthly Report:

Operations Manager Sullivan discussed notable outages and occurrences and updates on
special projects.

X. Manager of System Planning, Job Training & Safety Small’s Monthly Report:

Manager Small Discussed Federated visit and various safety improvements and concerns with
ticks.

Xl. CSA Linehan’s Monthly Report:

CSA Linehan gave an oral report on the Meredith Dairy Fest outreach and an update on
member engagement, social media, and upcoming events.

Xll. Director/Staff Association Reports:

a. NYSRECA Meeting & Advocacy Day, May 7-9, 2023 — Albany, NY
President Pick and CEO Gasstrom gave report.
b. NEAEC Annual Meeting, May 18, 2023 — Virtual
Director Oles, CEO Gasstrom, and CSA Linehan gave report and informed
Board that CEO Gasstrom was appointed as NEAEC's RESMA representative.
c. NYAPP Meeting, May 19, 2023 — Virtual
President Pick and CEO Gasstrom gave report.

Xlll. New Business:

None

XIV. Future Business:

. DCEC at the Meredith Dairy Fest, June 10" & 11", 10am-5pm — Meredith, NY
. DCEC Regular Board Meeting, Tuesday, 06/27/2023 @ 5pm
i. Tree crew report to Board
c. CFC Forum, June 19-21, 2023 — Seattle, WA
d. DCEC Storm Preparation Advocacy Group Meeting, July 11, 2023 — location
TBD
e. NYSRECA Annual Meeting, July 27, 2023 — location TBD
f. NRECA Regional Meetings 1&4, September 6-8, 2023 — Richmond, VA
g. DCEC’s 79t Annual Meeting, September 15, 2023 — Delaware Academy,
Delhi, NY
h. NEAEC Annual Meeting, October 9-13, 2023 — Newport, Rl
ii. Board checks in on October 9, 2023
iii.  Risk Oversight, The Board’s Role in Risk Management 921.1 NRECA
training, October 10, 2023

O L



XV. Executive Session:

A motion was made at 7:56 p.m. to enter Executive Session by Secretary Wehmeyer. The
motion was seconded by Treasurer Menke. DCEC staff CEO John Gasstrom was invited to stay.
All else were excused. A motion was made to exit executive session at 8:37 p.m. by Secretary
Wehmeyer. The motion was seconded by Treasurer Menke.

XVI. Adjournment: There being no further business on the agenda, President Pick adjourned the
meeting at 8:37 p.m..

Respectfully submitted,

Secretary, Laurie Wehmeyer



30IAH3S M3AN
/ONILN3A
R<El\l=[0=!

dIZ '31V1S ‘ALID

LLPO-ESLEL HOA MN IUIeQ ‘LLY XOF "0 ‘d ‘198118 30da YHON §
U] ‘aAnjeradoo)) o11323[q Ajuno)) areme[d(q

SS34AAv

LYE€C-9vL-£09

AINVN LSV

JINVN 1SdI4

NOIL1LVOOT
€202 9T aunr — SAIHSYIAFININ MIN

uiteqired Ayjou L TELET AN 'Sapuy/ peoyY J9ABS/N USLIEA 08 uireqired Ajpown ¥Z-¢8-GNV | 10078681
1SS0y PJeYIR 6ELET AN '0[IIAWO00|G peoy aMoID T/TT suinag ueky 35-19-COM | 1001261
SQUIODOIN BUUY WO} Bunuay 98/ET AN ‘Playsiadieq 167 X0g Od uoyeag Sauer Zv-v1-24H | 10012261
0SSNy ] [8YIIIN 0SET AN ‘Hodusneq aUeT Jaquil L S0T SET ETETEe 6T-1T-2 VA | T00TTZ61
MaUW0D Ueor €G/ET AN ‘HodUaAeQ ReM\ selin 15¢ unyses S ZI-61-1vd | 10022261
Lz EE €G/ET AN 413 109115 1000501d ¢ 11 ISe[ny| NET VZ-2/-C OM | 1002261
SUUIM Peyd TGLET AN ‘Hoduaneq €1 X0g Od SUUIAN eUURLg 9T-/€-Tvd | 10051261
erenape| 4dasol | ¥SGTT AN ‘MOPEaIA 1SeT 10 \ed AINgsifes GGG eIeAspe| SEEN ] ZZ-€€-¢d4H | 10010267
2ppoZ 1aqoy 08/TT AN 'SewWer 1S 19811S PIEYIO ¢ eppoZ [9eyaIN V6-1v-7 VH | 10002261
Aya [enwies wolj bunuay 0S/ET AN HodUsAed | ¢ ‘peoy @al) aNojieyD £88e IleABq ugor® eskZ | 90¢-/¢-1va | TO0ETZ6T
VEBTT
[11H Weljjim AN S3UDLIOI JaluaD 80e|d [IBMOH § usfeq Uy a9-z-v ¥4 | TOOL6T6T
OI[3PUOIA SEJOUDIN 6ELET AN '0[IIAWO00|G £¢ KemypBiH AunoD /695 us|Ind auReM 7-16-2 OM | TOOE6T6T
Ister |
ouluolUY Woly Bunusy | vERZT AN ‘96109 puelD Z9€ 09 Od 300UIB/ Aaagger £€2-2r-2 OM | 10090261
ouezue
dniyLoN £8100 | £60/0 [N SHOA MaN 1S3/ v 1dV ‘191 MalAIled TTES OjNWOY | 0JaLIAND BYISEIEN TT-G2-€ VIN |  T00Y0Z6T
0/E0ZZHOM 99IA18S MAN STZTT AN ‘UAP{00Ig €415 46 825 Uewe) ETENRIN av-6v-¢ 19| 100TV16T
191USD) 1eaNlay [I1H AUOWIEH | /G/ET AN 'UMPAIBIA 1seT Peoy |11H 99519IN 969 ures eUEC 79 9ed | OZ1-6v-1 OM | 100E0C61
ezUepleg Ueld woly Bunuay | /G/ET AN (MIPaIaIN Ised inds Buluyaq s1 Janeg eURLG | 00Z-66-1 VA | TO0BBI6T
O1[3PUOIA| SEJOUDIN B6ELET AN '0[IIAWO00|] £¢ KemypBiH AunoD /695 0sseq e V7-16-C OM | 10021261
0J|nZ suydasor 6ELET AN '9][IAWO00|G Peoy |1IH 8|11AW00|g 09EZ PEVETY BURI|] /-69-T 3N | 10007261

# 100V




&/ DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

June 16, 2023

BAD DEBT COLLECTION

* PLEASE NOTE: The amounts below were recovered through capital credit retirements,
Southern Tier Credit Center & DCEC through June 16, 2023
Total recovered: $1405.09

Original

Amount ** Amount Amount Amount Commission
Turned Over Name Collected Collected Collected Paid this Balance Due

For CCto UA from So. Tier | from DCEC Month *
Collections

$39.25 Peter Savino $27.47 $11.78 0
$322.53 Peter A Sebastian $322.53 0
$315.78 Suanne Belarge $22.28 $293.50
$313.29 Brandy White $158.24 $155.05
$368.22 Frances Gallagher $27.01 $341.21
$209.90 Charles Holcomb $199.08 $0.00
$565.46 Phelicia Quigley $161.27 $397.68
$332.65 Crystal Gonsalves $159.03 $172.07
$389.57 Casey Hine-Rowe $109.24 $246.84
$1,541.04 Brian Ballard $328.18 $1,140.21

* Commission is 30% of the total amount collected last month.
services are required. If payment is made directly to us,

will be the following month.

50% if legal
the commission

** Under $30.00 does not get reported to Southern Tier Credit Center.

*** Billing department did a small balance write off for the balance due amount.

**%% Capital credits are applied on a discounted basis towards outstanding debt
per the Capital Credits Applied to Bad Debt Policy.

**xxx*x Paid directly to DCEC prior to turning over to Southern Tier for

Collections

5 N Depot St., P.O. Box 471, Delhi, NY 13753
Telephone: (607) 746-2341 Fax: (607) 746-7548 www.dce.coop




&/ DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED, THAT WE, The Board of Directors of the Delaware County Electric
Cooperative, Inc., 5 N. Depot St., Delhi, NY 13753, do hereby authorize the transfer of
$8062.66 representing uncollectible accounts for utility customers per the following
listing, to accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts.

ACCOUNT Map Location CUSTOMER SEASONAL  RESIDENTIAL

18471001 DA 1-29-15C  Stacy Briggs $651.17
16655001 AN 4-59-3 Clifford Bice $715.37
18252001 DA 1-39-20C  Christina Hempstead $240.04
18682001 ME 1-66-16 Austin Hitchcock $1972.84
11151001 HA 4-67-9A  Stuart Kaplan $280.63
19034001 AN 5-41-20  Sullivan O’Brien $262.97
7978002 DA 1-37-11 Reginald Ross $1619.27
6187001 KO 2-52-2E  Winifred Rever $1125.72
16219002 ME 1-47-8B  Samantha Roe $85.41
14763002 JE 2-6-5A Kenneth Tompkins Jr. $519.05
7851003 DA 1-19-32 Richard Wilke $590.19

June 27, 2023

Laurie Wehmeyer
SECRETARY

5 N Depot St., P.O. Box 471, Delhi, NY 13753
Telephone: (607) 746-2341 Fax: (607) 746-7548 www.dce.coop 8



Director Compensation Report

2023 Director Compensation Report Report Date: 20-Jun-2023

Director Officer [ CCD | Per Diem | Pers Mileage* Comp YTD** | Mile/Reim YTD| TOTAL YTD [ Balance Due (YTD)
1|Burnett No Yes | $ 350 |17 | $ 11.14 $ 2,450.00 | $ 7798 |$ 252798 $ 1,083.42
2|Furgol No No $ 300 | 9 $ 5.90 $ 3,300.00 | $ 41.30 | $ 3,341.30 | $ 917.70
3|Menke Yes Yes | $ 37515 | $ 983 $ 3,750.00 | $ 712.02 |$ 4,462.02 | $ 1,154.49
4|0les No Yes | $ 350| 14 | $ 9.17 $ 2,450.00 | $ 6419 |$ 251419 |$ 1,077.51
5|Pick Yes Yes | $ 375 | 44 | $ 28.82 $ 6,025.00 | % 23056 |$ 6,255.56 | $ 1,211.46
6|Russell Yes Yes | $ 375| 44 |$ 2882 $ 4,125.00 | $ 17292 [$ 429792 | $ 1,211.46
8|Wehmeyer Yes Yes | $ 375 | 52 | $ 34.06 $ 4,125.00 | $ 23842 | $ 4,363.42 | $ 1,227.18

TOTAL: $ 26,225.00 | $ 1537.39 | $ 27,762.39 | $ 7,883.22

NOTES: 1) Board policy identifies $300 per diem compensation + $25 for officers + $50 for CCD directors.

*|2) Mileage to/from regular meetings @ IRS per mile rates of...............cccceeeuvenne.. _:

*k

3) Compensation YTD reflects total taxable amount earned (excludes reimburseable expenses such as mileage)

4) Compensation for co-op-related "Short Activities” @ $100 per meeting (per Jan2013 Board Resolution)




DIV ACTIVITY i1la M| PROCESS
BOARD [Nominating (Director Search) Committee Meeting MEETING
BOARD [Annual Meeting Kick-off Planning (incl consideration of Bylaw changes) MEETING
BOARD [Legislative Youth Tour Interviews/Selection MEETING
BOARD [Board decision/approval of proposed bylaw changes (for Annual Meeting) ACTION
BOARD [NYSRECA Legislative Conference (tbd) MEETING
BOARD [Finance Committee Meeting MEETING
BOARD [Organization & Staffing Committee Meeting MEETING
BOARD [NEAEC Annual Meeting MEETING
BOARD (Board Self-Evaluation Survey (odd years only, next 2023) COMPLY
BOARD [NYSRECA Annual Meeting MEETING
BOARD [OEC Annual Meeting MEETING
BOARD [CEO Goals & Objectives Mid-Year Review REPORT
BOARD [NRECA Survey - Directors, Attorneys, Auditors PROCESS
BOARD ([Cooperative Officers Job Descriptions Review COMPLY
BOARD ([Organizational Meeting of Board (incl. Committee appointments) COMPLY
BOARD [NRECA Region 1 Annual Meeting MEETING
BOARD |(Kick-off Budgeting Process (prelim capital budget) BUDGET
BOARD [Annual Sexual Harassment Training COMPLY
BOARD (Capital Credit retirement - decision by Board ACTION
BOARD [Re-instatement of Accounting/Audit Firm (resolution) AUDIT
BOARD [Oneida-Madison EC Annual Meeting MEETING
BOARD (Steuben REC Annual Meeting MEETING
BOARD [CEO Performance Review — kick off & plan Jan O&S Committee Mtg PROCESS
BOARD |Approve Holiday Gift for Board/Staff/Employees PROCESS
BOARD [NRECA Annual Meeting MEETING
BOARD ([Board appoints Nominating Committee (Directors identify members) ACTION
BOARD [Consider GM contract renewal/update PROCESS
MGMT [Line Extension Policy Rate Review PROCESS
MGMT [DEC Pesticide Business/Agency Registration (April/May, tri-annual, next in 2022) COMPLY
MGMT [Update Standard Costs PROCESS
MGMT [NYS ORPS Equalization & Assessment report (4/15) COMPLY
MGMT [Strategic Plan Review COMPLY
MGMT [ROW & Line-Inspection contracting Bid PROCESS
MGMT [Semi-annual review of Corporate Calendar PROCESS
MGMT [Renew Purchase of TCCs with NYISO/NYPA PROCESS
MGMT [CFC Annual Forum MEETING
MGMT [ROW & Line-Inspection contracting Awards/ Contract Bid Report to Board for Budget BUDGET
MGMT [Self-Eval to Board REPORT
MGMT [DCEC Annual Meeting MEETING
MGMT [Year-End Financial Projection (Capital Credit Retirement Assessment) REPORT
MGMT [Review DPS Data for Annual Member Deposit Rate Effective 1/1 COMPLY
MGMT [All-Employee Meeting (last week October) PROCESS
MGMT |Order Holiday Gift Cards for Board/Staff/Employees PROCESS
MGMT (Year-end Financial Projection (Formulary Rate Planning) BUDGET
MGMT |Operating Plan/Budget Presented BUDGET
MGMT [Capital Credit Retirement (if applicable) PROCESS
MGMT [Employee Performance Reviews — prep STAFFING
MGMT |Operating Plan/Budget Approved BUDGET
MGMT (Christmas Party STAFFING
MGMT [Update PPAC “System Loss Factor” based on prior year analysis PROCESS
MGMT [Exempt Employee Salary Action PROCESS
MGMT [Employee Performance Reviews REPORT
MGMT [NYSRECA Meeting MEETING
MGMT [Year-End Accomplishments Review / Goals & Objectives Approval REPORT
MGMT (Legislative Youth Delegate kick-off (interviews/selection by late March) PROCESS

10



&/ DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

RESOLUTION
June 27, 2023
BE IT RESOLVED, THAT WE, the Board of Directors, of the Delaware County Electric

Cooperative, Inc., 5 N Depot Street, Delhi, NY 13753 do hereby authorize the transfer of
$75,567.00 from unclaimed patronage capital from 2021 to donated capital.

12/09/2021 $75,567.00

June 27, 2023

Laurie Wehmeyer. / Secretary

5 N Depot Street, P.O. Box 471, Delhi, NY 13753
Telephone: (607) 746-9282 Fax: (607) 746-7548 www.dce.coop

11



£, DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

Document Type: Original Policy Date: Latest Revision Date:

Board Level Policy May 24, 2016 June 27, 2023

Document Owner: Document Classification: Review Cycle:

CFO Internal Use Only Annual

POLICY
SUBJECT:  Capital Credits Allocation Method
DEFINITIONS:
Member:  As used within this policy, “Member” shall mean (1) a memberin - { Formatted: Underiine

accordance with the Cooperative’s Bylaws; or (2) a non-member
purchasing electric energy, having completed a membership application,
agreed to comply with and be bound by the Articles of Incorporation and
By-laws of the Cooperative and any policies, rules and regulations
adopted by the board of directors, and awaiting acceptance of his or her
membership by the board of directors. Member, as defined herein, only
includes members in accordance with the Bylaws and those with pending

membership applications in accordance with the Bylaws.
*~~ ~ { Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

******************************** B { Formatted: Underline

dollars, for electric service purchased by Members during the fiscal year
and used by the Cooperative for allocating Patronage Capital Credits in a
proportionate manner to each Member.

Patronage Capital Credits: __As used within this policy, “Patronage Capital Credits” __ — { Formatted: Underline

shall mean the amounts allocated to and contributed by the Member to the
Cooperative as capital.

POLICY: In accordance with Article VII of the Cooperative’s Bylaws, the Cooperative shall
operate on a non-profit basis for the mutual benefit of its members. Through their
patronage, members of the Cooperative shall furnish capital to the Cooperative.
The Cooperative shall account for all amounts receivable in excess of operating
costs and expenses, which may be referred to as the Cooperative’s margins. All
margins are received with the understanding that they are furnished by the
members as capital. The Cooperative shall keep records in such a manner that at
the end of each fiscal year the amount of capital, if any, so furnished by each
Member is clearly reflected and credited in an appropriate record to the capital
account of each Member, and the Cooperative shall, within a reasonable time after
the completion of the independent audit of the Cooperative’s financial statements,
notify each Member of the amount of capital so credited to his or her account in
accordance with the Cooperative’s Bylaws.

With respect to the furnishing of electric service, the amount of margin credited to
each Member’s capital account (Patronage Capital Credits) shall be allocated on a
pro-rata basis, according to each Member’s dollars of electric service patronage as
a share of the Cooperative’s total electric service revenues. The word dollars is




77

O

DCEC

Delaware County

Electric Cooperative

underscored to set it apart from other allocation methods that shall not be used,
such as each Member’s kWh of energy purchased. Electric service revenues
include fixed monthly service charges, demand charges, energy charges, power
cost adjustment charges, energy efficiency charges, formulary rate adjustment
charges, fees, penalties, and adjustments thereto.

Receivables for goods or services other than electric service sold by the
Cooperative or reimbursements to the Cooperative, whether sold to or reimbursed
by a Member or non-Member, shall not be eligible for capital credits so long as
such goods, services, or reimbursements are priced to cover only the
Cooperative’s costs and do not contribute to the Cooperative’s margin. Revenues
for goods or services other than electric revenue, if excluded from the allocation
process, shall be excluded from both the numerator and denominator when
calculating each Member’s share of the Cooperative’s margin.

Receivables for goods or services other than electric service sold by the
Cooperative to a non-Member, shall not be eligible for capital credits. Margins
attributable to the sale of goods or services other than electric service to non-
Members (shall be administered as described in the following table:

Scenario Administration of Non-Member Margin,
Not from Electric Service
Cooperative incurred Margin is used, to the extent needed, to offset

losses during the current | losses, either from current or prior year(s).
year or any prior year

Cooperative has no losses | Margin shall be allocated to the current year’s
from the current year and | Members on a Patronage basis.

no losses from prior
year(s), which have not
previously been offset

In this way, all dollars of margin shall be allocated to a Member.

For the avoidance of doubt, the table below describes how each of the
Cooperative’s business areas are treated with respect to capital credits:

Business Area Purchaser Treatment of Margin

Electric Service Members Allocated to Members
proportionate to dollars of electric
service revenue

‘HOWFH%&H% Members Priced to cover only costs — do

or+Re-sale of any ether not contribute to margin
inventory item

\Heﬂ—wa«%pheaﬁer—%a%e% Non-Members | Priced to exceed costs and
or+Re-sale of any ether contribute to margin. Allocated
inventory item to Members receiving electric
service proportionate to dollars of
electric service rather than being

13



sDCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

O

allocated to non-Members who
purchase hot water heaters or any
other inventory item.

PROCEDURE: Above policy shall be carried out by the billing department in coordination
with the finance department and in consultation with the Cooperative’s
attorney as may be determined necessary.

=) i=)

DELAWARE COUNTY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.

Approved by Board of Directors May 24, 2016
Revised by Board of Directors Jan 23, 2018
Revised by Board of Directors Mar 26, 2019
Reviewed by Board of Directors Apr 26, 2022
Revised by Board of Directors June 227, 2023

14



DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

O

Document Type:
Board Level Policy

Original Policy Date:
September 27, 2022

Latest Revision Date:

June 27, 2023

Document Owner: Document Classification: Review Cycle:
CEO Internal Use Only Tri-Annual
POLICY
SUBJECT: Pandemic Related Infectious Disease
POLICY: It shall be the policy of the Cooperative to follow federal, state, and
county guidelines regarding the required Cooperative response to health
concerns raised by infectious disease determined as widespread outbreaks
or pandemic.
PROCEDURE: Board of Directors shall review procedures found in Appendix A as

outlined in this policy regarding any future events.

RESPONSIBILITY: Board of Directors

DELAWARE COUNTY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.

Approved by Board of Directors

Revised by Board of Directors

September 27, 2022
June 27, 2023

[ Formatted: Centered

15



&/ DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

Appendix A

state, and county
quidelines dedicated to

instances of “COVID-19 time” over
the lifecycle of the employee. The

air-borne and other

employee will receive up to 5 days of

infectious diseases.
including COVID-19.

regular paid time for each instance.
After three instances are utilized, the

employee would then use PTO/Sick
leave. The Cooperative requires a
completed NY Isolation Affirmation
Form when the employee is receiving
“COVID-19 time”.

Infectious | Effective Procedural Procedure Memo
Disease Date Document
COVID-19 | 09/27/2022 | n/a To follow federal, Employees will receive up to an 1 { Formatted Table
state, and county additional 40 hours of paid leave
guidelines dedicated to | during 2022 with portions thereof
COVID-19. applied to restore sick/PTO hours
taken between symptom onset and
positive test results. Unused COVID
hours are not paid out at year-end nor
are they donatable or carry over into
future years.
COVID-19 01/01/2023 n/a To follow federal The Cooperative provides three

{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt

16



& /DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

POLICIES, GUIDELINES, and PROCEDURES

Document Type: Original Policy Date: Latest Revision Date:
Board Level Policy June 27, 2023 June 27, 2023
Document Owner: Document Classification: Review Cycle:

CEO Internal Use Only Annual

PURPOSE: To create and document a protocol and nomenclature for policies, guidelines,
procedures, and other working documents. Also, to document a review cycle and assign the
appropriate classification level of documents.

POLICY: The Cooperative shall create documents that help govern its actions, provide
instructions for work, and otherwise offer helpful guidelines for operating the business of the
Cooperative. These documents may take several forms, and shall basically reflect the following
protocol for Document Type, in hierarchical order:

Board Level Policy (BLP): A Board Level Policy explains why and/or what the
Cooperative does. Policies at the BLP level are within the Board of Director’s purview to
make decisions and normally are enacted to meet requirements of the law, the
Cooperative’s By-Laws, or Articles of Incorporation. A BLP may be a document that sets
high-level operating principles for the organization, such as establishing a risk tolerance,
or financial philosophy. A BLP may also be a policy document that has direct impact on
members interests and/or significant financial impact. For example, a policy on
borrowing and levels of debt sets a financial philosophy and is a BLP. Also, a policy that
sets parameters for how members are compensated for distributed generation or sets the
organization’s overall safety culture would be BLPs.

Management Level Policy (MLP): A Management Level Policy also explains why
and/or what the Cooperative does, but are more focused on the day-to-day operation of
the Cooperative. Policies at the MLP level are set by Management, under the purview of
the CEO (who is ultimately accountable to the Board of Directors). A MLP is typically a
document determining operating parameters that do not require the Board of Director’s
direct oversight. For example, a policy on vacation rollover would be aan MLP.

Procedure: A Procedure is a document that describes how we de-semethingimplement
the directives of a BLP or MLP, or perform other key tasks. These types of documents
may give high-level steps, or detailed instructions on how to accomplish one or more
tasks. Procedures are set at the Cooperative Management level, under the purview of the
CEO.

Program: A Program document describes an offering or “program” that is available to
members, employees, and/or affiliates. For example, DCEC offers a “Go 100% Green”
program in which members may opt to purchase Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) to
support a 100% green sourcing of their electricity use. Programs are set at the
Cooperative Management level and administered by staff.

17



& /DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

Guideline: A Guideline is a document that describes a possible, or perhaps preferred,
way of doing something. It is non-binding but designed to give guidance to staff in
performing specific tasks. Guidelines are set at the Management level, under the purview
of the CEO.

Working Document: A working document is one which contains data, or work in
process, that may need to be periodically or regularly updated. This might include a list
of employees on a committee, or a spreadsheet of electric load data being collected for an
engineering study.

From time-to-time, it may be practical to combine two or more types of decumentdocuments. In
such case, the document type shall be treated as the type that is “highest” on the hierarchical
order shown above, and there will be clearly labelled sections showing which parts of the
document are of each type. An example of this may be a new MLP document that also explains
some instructions on how to perform a key task. In this case, the main document will be a MLP
document with one or more sections labelled “Policy” and one or more sections labelled
“Procedure.”

Document Owner: The document owner shall be named to document the person or role that is
responsible for the review and update of the document. Document owners may be the “Board”
or may be a specific title or role within the Cooperative. The document owner should not be
listed as a specific name, such as “John Smith,” but rather a title such as “CEO” or role such as
“Safety Coordinator.”

Document Classification: Certain documents may contain sensitive information. The
classification of documents should be set to give proper guidance to staff on how to treat the
documents. Classification shall follow the following format:

Public: A Public document may be made freely available to any who wishwishes to view
it. Such documents should not contain any sensitive, trade-secret, or other information the
cooperative is obligated to protect.

Member-Only: This classification of document is for those documents that are available
for viewing by any member of the Cooperative. Because it is not feasible to properly protect
such a document, they should also not contain any sensitive, trade-secret, or other information
the cooperative is obligated to protect.

Internal-Use Only: This classification of document is for those internal employees,
directors, and trusted industry-partners that have a need to know the information. Such
documents should not contain any sensitive, trade-secret, or other information the cooperative is
obligated to protect.

Confidential: This classification is for documents that contain sensitive, trade-secret, or
any other information the cooperative is obligated to protect. Such documents shall be clearly
labelled as “Confidential” with a banner, watermark, header, footer, or other obvious
designation. Such documents are for directors, internal management staff of the Cooperative,
other staff that have signed a Cooperative non-disclosure agreement, outside counsel with legal
privilege, and third-parties with which we have an executed non-disclosure or confidentiality
agreement.

18



& /DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

Review Cycle: The review cycle sets the minimum threshold for the Cooperative to review the
document. A document may be reviewed more frequently as needed or desired. An update,
revision, and/or approval of a document would constitute a review,-andreview and satisfy the
review cycle requirement. The review, revision, update, and approval of documents shall be
captured in the review history section, normally at the end of each document.

DELAWARE COUNTY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC
Approved by Board of Directors June 27, 2023

19



Proposed By-law changes

ALLOWS ABILITY TO HAVE DIGITAL CERFITICATES IN THE FUTURE
ARTICLE I, Section 2. Membership Certificates

Such certificate, when issued in paper, shall be signed by the President and by the Secretary of the
Cooperative and the corporate seal shall be affixed thereto. Certificates that are produced electronically
shall be appropriately marked to reflect their authenticity.

ANNUAL MEETING RELATED — Remove limitation of only being able to hold annual meeting in
September. Allow those casting early and absentee votes to be counted in quorum. Clarifying the
definition of “in-person voting” and streamlining the order of business for the meeting.

ARTICLE Ill, Section 2. Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of the members shall be held in-Septemberof each year at such place in Delhi, in
the County of Delaware, New York, or, where desirable, in another township in which the Cooperative
conducts business...

Section 5. Quorum. Fifty members present, counted as those voting at the meeting in person or
electronically, as well as those having cast votes by mail or early in-person, shall constitute a quorum.

Section 6. Voting. Each member shall be entitled to only one vote. Voting shall either be in person or by
proxy, mail, or electronic means, or any combination of the above. In person voting shall mean votes cast
at the Annual Meeting of Members or at the Cooperative office as described in Section 7(a)2 below.

Section 8. Order of Business.

1. Report as to which-membersare-presentinpersenr how many members have cast votes in order
to determine the existence of a quorum. It is sufficient to report that enough members have cast
votes to satisfy quorum, even if the counting of votes is not yet complete.

(Jeff Clark Recommends change to Section 5. Above)

Section 5. Quorum. Fifty members present in person shall constitute a quorum. For purposes herein,
“present in person” shall mean those in physical attendance, those participating electronically and
those having cast votes by mail or in person at the Cooperative office.

OMITTING 2019 DIRECTOR ELECTION LANGUAGE - this language was specific to 2019’s director
elections and is no longer needed.

ARTICLE IV, Section 2. Qualification, Election and Tenure

20



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REGULAR MEETINGS - allows the meeting of the board of directors to be
optionally held at the same place immediately after the annual meeting, or to be held later during the
regularly scheduled meeting time.

ARTICLE V, Section 1. Regular Meetings. A regular meeting of the board of directors shatl-may be
held without notice other than this bylaw, immediately after, and at the same place as, the
annual meeting of the members. A regular meeting of the board of directors shall also be held

monthly-periodically at such time and place in a Belhi—Delaware-Countyy—New-York-State—or
where-desirablein-anether township in which the Cooperative conducts business as the board

of directors may provide by resolution. Such regular smenthly meetings may be held without
notice other than such resolution fixing the time and place thereof.

ADDING ARTICLE XII: Mediation and Arbitration

ARTICLE Xil

If a controversy or claim arises out of the Cooperative’s provision of a Cooperative service, the
Cooperative’s exercise of its rights under these bylaws or the terms of membership, or a
Member’s use of a Cooperative service, the parties shall first try to settle the dispute through
negotiation. If the dispute is not settled by negotiation, and if requested by the Cooperative or
the Member, then the Cooperative and the Member shall try in good faith to settle the dispute
by mediation conducted by a neutral third person, acceptable to both parties. The mediator
shall have no power to impose a decision if all of the parties do not agree to settle the dispute,
but shall help the parties reach an agreement by focusing on the key issues in a case, exchanging
information between the parties and exploring options for settlement. If the dispute is not
settled after mediation, the controversy or claim shall be resolved by arbitration administered
pursuant to the rules of the American Arbitration Association and the judgment on the award
rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. Controversies and
claims must be settled through individual arbitration, and not through collective or class action
arbitration. This section does not apply to controversies over the acquisition of rights-of way or
the right of the Cooperative to construct, operate, inspect, repair, maintain, relocate, improve,
reconstruct, and replace its facilities within any of its rights-of-way.

21



( style Definition: TOC 1

Delaware County
Electric

Cooperative, Inc.

BYLAWS

Delhi, New York

Revised September 10, 2021

( style Definition: TOC 3

22



Section

Nook~wpdpE

=

NouokwppE

aprpOdE

NN E

Table of Contents

Page
ARTICLE I
MEMBERSHIP

Requirements for MembErShip ........oooiiioei e 1
Membership CertifiCateS.......ccoviiriiiieree e e
JOINT MEMDEISNIP. ...t ettt sae
Conversion of Membership
Membership and Service CONNECLION FEES........ccuviiriiiriiei e 3
Purchase of Electric Energy or Other Electric Energy Related Services...........cccooecvnienne 3
Termination of MemMDBEISNIP .....cviveiiiiie s 3

ARTICLE Il

RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES OF MEMBERS

Property Interest 0f MEMDEIS .......ocviiiiiiiccec s 3
Non-Liability for Debts of the COOPEratiVe. .........c.coveieireriierre st 4

ARTICLE Il

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

ANNUAL IMIEBTING ...ttt ettt sttt et et e et e neneenas
Special MEBLINGS ......cv i
Notice of Members Meetings..........cocevvrerereeieninieienese e
QUOTUM ..ttt et besneenae e
VOUING oottt nae
Absentee Balloting........c.cccerieiirriiee e
OFAEE OF BUSINESS.....oeiiviiiiiiiiete ettt ettt et sttt e st e e st s bt e st e e sba s s be s sateasbessbbesatessbessreas 6

ARTICLE IV

DIRECTORS
General POWErS ........ccoeiieienicineenn
Qualification, Election and Tenure
NOMINALIONS......cveiiriicrriese
Removal of Directors by Members
Removal of Directors by the Board of Directors.............c.........
VACANCIES ...euviveiteieieiieie ettt sttt e st resbesbesee b
Compensation
Employment of Former Directors by the Cooperative

ARTICLE V
MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS
REGUIAT IMBELINGS -ttt ettt n et ne e s e naenens
Special Meetings.........ccccveenee.
Notice of Directors Meetings
Allowance of and Limitations on Telephonic Participation
(@80} 11 14 IS USSP PP OTPR

23



N

>

No

A

PoONME

Boo~NokwnPE

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS

NUMDEE <. 10
Election and Term of OFfiCe ......oviiiiiieeee e 10
Removal of Officers and Agents by DireCtors..........ccoovvieiriieneiienee s 1016
President
BT (=TT [T | TSR 11
Secretary
Treasurer
Chief EXECULIVE OFFICEN .......vieeeeiiiiiissceee e 12
COMPENSALION ...viuvivietieiieie sttt ettt ettt e st e teeb e be st e b e st ess et et enseseeteabeneen 12
REPOIES ...ttt bbbt b e b bt ae e bt r e e r e eae e e nreen 12

ARTICLE VII

NON-PROFIT OPERATION AND CAPITAL

DEFINITIONS. ...t 13
Interest or Dividend on Capital Prohibited ...........ccccoviiiiiiieiei e 13
Patronage Capital Contributions, Allocations and Retirements in Connection with
FUrnishing EIGCIIC ENEIQY ...ccciiiiiiirieese i 13
Patronage Capital Credits from Associated Organizations..........cc.coceverereeiieieriniesiesiennens 13
Patronage Capital Contributions, Allocations and Retirements in Connection with
Furnishing Other GOOUS OF SEIVICES......c.ciiiiiiiireieieiieie ettt sbe s 16
Net Earnings from NON-patronage BUSINESS........cccviiiirererieneeese e 13
INEE SAVINGS ..ttt et bbbttt et bbb ettt et e 13
PAtrON AQIEEIMENT ..ottt sttt bbbt sb et esbeesbesbesbeeneenbe e 13

ARTICLE VIII

DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY
ARTICLE IX
SEAL
ARTICLE X

FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS

(1] 1] 1 (o] 1TSS RO PRPRRR
Checks, Drafts, etc. .. .
DIBPOSIES. ...ttt bbb bbb bt
Change IN RAES ....c.couiiiieie ettt sttt st seere st e e eneeresbeneen
Lot I T T RSOOSR

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS
Membership in Other OrganiZationsS...........cccovveveiiiieieiiiei e 19
WIVET OF NOTICE ...ttt sttt ne e ae e e 19
RUlES and REGUIATIONS.........oiieeiiieiercie ettt 19
Accounting SYStem and REPOIS ........cveieiiiiiieieiee ettt 19

24



ARTICLE XII
MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION. .. eueeiieieieie e

ARTICLE X1
AMENDMENTS

25



The aim of Delaware County Electric Cooperative, Inc., is
to make electric energy and related services available to members
at the lowest cost consistent with sound economy

and good management.

BYLAWS
of Delaware County Electric
Cooperative, Inc.

ARTICLE I
Membership

Section 1. Requirements for Membership. Any natural person, firm, association,
corporation, business trust, estate, partnership, federal agency, state or political subdivision or
agency thereof or any body politic (collectively, a “person”) may become a member in Delaware
County Electric Cooperative, Inc. (herein called the "Cooperative™) by:

(@) filing a written or electronic application for membership therein;

(b) agreeing to purchase from the Cooperative electric energy or other electric energy
related services furnished by the Cooperative when they are made available through
its facilities;

() agreeing to comply with and be bound by the articles of incorporation and bylaws
of the Cooperative and any policies, rules and regulations adopted by the board of
directors; and

(d) paying the membership fee hereinafter specified; provided, however, that no person
shall become a member unless and until he or she or it has been accepted for
membership by the board of directors or the members. No member may hold more
than one membership in the Cooperative, and no membership in the Cooperative
shall be transferable.

At each meeting of the members held subsequent to the expiration of a period of six months
from the date of incorporation of the Cooperative, all applications received more than ninety days
prior to such meeting and which have not been accepted or which have been rejected by the board
of directors shall be submitted by the Secretary to such meeting and, subject to compliance by the
applicant with the requirements hereinabove set forth, such applications or any one or more of
them may be accepted by vote of the members. The Secretary shall give each such applicant at

26



least ten days notice of the date of the members' meeting to which his application will be submitted
and such applicant shall be entitled to be present and heard at the meeting.

Section 2. Membership Certificates. Membership in the Cooperative shall be evidenced
by a membership certificate which shall be in such form and shall contain such provisions as shall
be determined by the board of directors. Such certificate, when issued in paper, shall be signed by
the President and by the Secretary of the Cooperative and the corporate seal shall be affixed
thereto. —Certificates that are produced electronically shall be appropriately marked to reflect their
authenticity. No membership certificate shall be issued for less than the membership fee fixed in
these bylaws, nor until such membership fee has been fully paid. In case of a lost, destroyed or
mutilated certificate, a new certificate may be issued therefor upon such uniform terms and
indemnity to the Cooperative as the board of directors may prescribe.

Section 3. Joint Membership. In order to comply with New York State law as articulated
in the 2011 Marriage Equality Act, a joint membership is defined as a membership held by a
married couple. A married couple may apply for a joint membership and subject to their
compliance with the requirements set forth in Section 1 of this Article, may be accepted for such
membership. The term "member" as used in these bylaws shall be deemed to include a married
couple holding a joint membership and any provisions relating to the rights and liabilities of
membership shall apply equally with respect to the holders of a joint membership. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, the effect of the hereinafter specified actions by or in respect to the
holders of a joint membership shall be as follows:

@) The presence at a meeting of either or both shall be regarded as the presence of one
member, and of constituting a joint waiver of notice of the meeting.

(b) The vote of either separately or both jointly shall constitute one joint vote;

(c) An absentee ballot executed by either or both shall constitute one joint absentee
ballot;

(d) A waiver of notice signed by either or both shall constitute a joint waiver;
(e) Notice to either shall constitute notice to both;

f Expulsion of either shall terminate the joint membership;

(99  Withdrawal of either shall terminate the joint membership;

(h) Either but not both may be elected or appointed as an officer or director, provided
that both meet the qualifications for such office.

Section 4. Conversion of Membership. (a) A membership may be converted to a joint
membership upon written request of the holder thereof and the agreement by such holder and his
or her spouse to comply with the articles of incorporation, bylaws, policies and rules and
regulations adopted by the board of directors. The outstanding membership certificate shall be
surrendered, and shall be reissued by the Cooperative in such manner as shall indicate the changed
membership status.

27



(b) Upon the death of either spouse who is a party to the joint membership, such
membership shall be held solely by the survivor. The outstanding membership certificate shall be
surrendered, and shall be reissued in such manner as shall indicate the changed membership status;
provided, however, that the estate of the deceased shall not be released from any debts due the
Cooperative.

Section 5. Membership and Service Connection Fees. The membership fee shall be five
dollars, upon the payment of which a member shall be eligible for one service connection. An
additional fee of five dollars shall be charged for each additional service connection. Membership
and service connection fees for inactive members or services shall be transferred to donated capital.

Section 6. Purchase of Electric Energy or Other Electric Energy Related Services. Each
member shall, as soon as electric energy or other electric energy related services shall be available,
purchase from the Cooperative such electric energy or other electric energy related services and
shall pay therefore monthly rates which shall from time to time be fixed by the board of directors;
provided, however that the board of directors may limit the amount of electric energy which the
Cooperative shall be required to furnish to any one member. It is expressly understood that
amounts paid for electric energy and other electric energy related services in excess of the cost of
service are furnished by members as capital and each member shall be credited with the capital so
furnished as provided in these bylaws. Each member shall pay to the Cooperative such minimum
amount per month regardless of the amount of electric energy used, as shall be fixed by the board
of directors from time to time. Each member shall also pay all amounts owed by him or her to the
Cooperative as and when the same shall become due and payable.

Section 7. Termination of Membership. Any member may withdraw from membership
upon compliance with such uniform terms and conditions as the board of directors may prescribe.
The board of directors of the Cooperative may, by the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds
of all the directors, expel any member who shall have refused or failed to comply with any of the
provisions of the articles of incorporation, bylaws, policies or rules or regulations adopted by the
board of directors, but only if such members shall have been given written notice by the Secretary
of the Cooperative that such refusal or failure makes him or her liable to expulsion and such refusal
or failure shall have continued for at least ten days after such notice was given. Any expelled
member may be reinstated by vote of the board of directors or by vote of the members at any
annual or special meeting. The membership of a member who for a period of six months after
service is available to him or her has not purchased electric energy or other related services from
the Cooperative or of a member who has ceased to purchase energy or services from the
Cooperative, may upon notice be cancelled by an affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of all
of the board of directors.

ARTICLE Il
Rights and Liabilities of Members

Section 1. Property Interest of Members. Upon dissolution of the Cooperative, after
(a) all debts and liabilities of the Cooperative shall have been paid, and (b) all capital furnished
through patronage shall have been retired as provided in these bylaws, the remaining property and
assets of the Cooperative shall be, to the extent practical, distributed among the members and

28



former members in the proportion which the aggregate patronage of each bears to the total
patronage of all members preceding the date of the filing of the certificate of dissolution.

Section 2. Non-Liability for Debts of the Cooperative. The private property of the
members shall be exempt from execution or other liability for the debts of the Cooperative and no
member shall be individually liable or responsible for any debts or liabilities of the Cooperative.

ARTICLE Il
Meetings of Members

Section 1. Format. At the sole discretion of the board, and in consideration of the health,
safety and welfare of the members, any meeting authorized hereunder may be held partially or
solely by means of electronic communication, with procedures adopted to ensure that all members
choosing to participate have a reasonable opportunity to engage in all activities and purposes for
which meetings are held hereunder.

Section 2. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the members shall be held in
Septemberof-each year at such place in Delhi, in the County of Delaware, New York, or, where
desirable, in another township in which the Cooperative conducts business, as shall be designated
in the notice of the meeting for the purpose of electing directors, passing upon reports for the
previous fiscal year, and transacting such other business as may come before the meeting. The day
fixed for the annual meeting shall not be a Sunday or a legal holiday. Failure to hold the annual
meeting at the designated time shall not work a forfeiture or dissolution of the Cooperative.

Section 3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called upon by
resolution of the board of directors, or upon a written request signed by any three directors, by the
President, or by ten per centum or more of all the members, and it shall thereupon be the duty of
the Secretary to cause notice of such meeting to be given as hereinafter provided. Special meetings
of the members may be held at any place within the County of Delaware, or where desirable, in
another County in which the Cooperative conducts business in the State of New York, as specified
in the notice of the special meeting.

Section 4. Notice of Members Meetings. Written, printed or electronic notice stating the
place, day and hour of the meeting and, in case of a special meeting or an annual meeting
(“Membership Meetings”) at which business other than that listed in Section 8 of this article is to
be transacted, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given not less than
ten days nor more than forty-five days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by mail,
by or at the direction of the Secretary, or upon a default in duty by the Secretary, by the persons
calling the meeting, to each member. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to have been given
when deposited in the United States mail, addressed to the member at his address as it appears on
the records of the Cooperative, with postage thereon prepaid. The failure of any member to receive
notice of an annual or special meeting of the members shall not invalidate any action which may
be taken by the members at any such meeting.

Section 5. Quorum. Fifty members present; in person er-electronicathy;-shall constitute a

quorum. For purposes herein, “present in person” shall mean those in physical attendance,

29



those participating electronically and those having cast votes by mail or in person at the
Cooperative office.

If less than a quorum is present at any meeting, a majority of those present in person or
electronically may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice, provided, that the
Secretary shall notify any absent members of the time and place of such adjourned meeting.

Section 6. Voting. Each member shall be entitled to only one vote. VVoting shall either be
in person or by proxy, mail, or electronic means, or any combination of the above._ In person
voting shall mean votes cast at the Annual Meeting of Members or at the Cooperative office as
described in Section 7(a)2 below. All questions shall be decided by a vote of a majority of the
members voting thereon, except as otherwise provided by law, the articles of incorporation or these
bylaws. Questions resulting in a tie vote shall be decided by a second round of voting in like
manner. If a second round of voting results in a tie, the question shall be decided by a flipping of
a coin, which shall be administered by a duly elected officer of the Cooperative.

Section 7. Absentee Balloting.
(a) A member may vote by absentee ballot for any question or issue that is properly

brought before the membership at Membership Meetings. To be eligible to vote by

absentee ballot, a member must follow one of the following absentee balloting

procedures:

1. The member may request an absentee ballot by completing an official form available from
the Cooperative and submit the completed form to the Cooperative. The Cooperative must
receive the completed form at least twenty (20) days prior to the Membership Meeting
where, upon receipt, the Cooperative will provide an official absentee ballot to the member.
The Cooperative will count a properly completed absentee ballot if it is received within the
office of the Cooperative by no later than the close of business on the 4™ business day
preceding the day of the Membership Meeting.

OR

2. The member may appear, in person, at the office of the Cooperative, verify his or her
identity by presenting a government issued photo identification, request the absentee ballot,
complete the absentee ballot, and return it to the office of the Cooperative by no later than
the close of business on the 4th business day preceding the day of the Membership Meeting.
Absentee ballots shall be made available to members at the office of the Cooperative
starting at least 20 days prior to the Membership Meeting.

(b) Upon receipt of an absentee ballot by the Cooperative, a member may not revoke an
absentee ballot and vote at the meeting regarding the matter described in the ballot. A
member’s failure to receive an absentee ballot shall not affect a vote or action taken by
absentee ballot and in-person vote.

(c) The absentee ballot must: (1) set forth and describe a proposed action, identify a
candidate(s) and include the language of a motion, resolution, Bylaw Amendment, or
other written statement, upon which a Member is asked to vote or act; (2) state the date
of a Membership Meeting at which the members are scheduled to vote or act on the
matter; (3) provide an opportunity to vote for or against, or to abstain from voting on,
the matter; (4) instruct the member how to complete and return the absentee ballot; and

30



(5) state the time and date by which the Cooperative must receive the complete
absentee ballot.
Section 8. Order of Business. The order of business at the annual meeting of the members
and, so far as possible, at all other meetings of the members, shall be essentially as follows:

1 Report as to which-members-are-present-in-persenrhow many members have cast

votes in order to determine the existence of a quorum._lt is sufficient to report that
enough members have cast votes to satisfy quorum, even if the counting of votes is

not yet complete.

2. Reading of the notice of the meeting and proof of the due publication or mailing
thereof, or the waiver or waivers of notice of the meeting, as the case may be.

3. Reading of unapproved minutes of previous meetings of the members, or the waiver
or waivers of notice of reading, as the case may be, and the taking of necessary
action thereof.

4, Presentation and consideration of reports of officers, directors and committees.
5. Election of directors.
6. Unfinished business.
7. New business.
8. Adjournment.
ARTICLE IV
Directors

Section 1. General Powers. The business and affairs of the Cooperative shall be managed
by a board of seven directors selected from the Northern, Central and Southern Regions of the
Cooperative (as hereinafter described), which shall exercise all of the powers of the Cooperative
except such as are by law, the articles of incorporation or these bylaws conferred upon or reserved
to the members.

Section 2. Qualification, Election and Tenure. Two directors represent the Northern
Region, three directors represent the Central Region and two directors represent the Southern
Region.

At each annual meeting, a number of directors, equal to the number of directors whose
terms expire at the time of such meeting, shall be elected to hold office for a 3-year term.

31



Directors shall be elected by a plurality vote of members. No person shall be eligible to
become or remain a director, or to hold any position of trust in the Cooperative, who:

@) is not a member; or

(b) is in any way employed by, or was a former employee of within thirty-six (36)
months, or materially financially interested in, a competing enterprise of a business
primarily engaged in selling electric energy to the members of the Cooperative; or

(©) is a close relative of another director or active employee of the Cooperative (as
defined as being within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity); or

(d)  was a former employee of the Cooperative within thirty-six (36) months prior to
the vote; or

(e) has been convicted of a felony crime; or

()] who currently has amounts owed to the Cooperative for more than 90 days in
arrears; or

(9) is not a natural person (excludes entities such as firms, associations, corporations,
business trusts, estates, partnerships, federal agencies, state or political subdivisions
or agencies thereof or any body politic).

When a membership is held jointly by a married couple, either one, but not both, may be
elected a director, provided, however, that neither one shall be eligible to become or remain a
director or to hold a position of trust in the Cooperative, unless both shall meet the qualifications
hereinabove set forth.

Nothing contained in this section shall, or shall be construed to, affect in any manner
whatsoever the validity of any action taken at any meeting of the board of directors.

Section 3. Nominations. It shall be the duty of the board of directors to appoint, not less
than ninety (90) days nor more than two hundred (200) days before the date of a meeting of the
members at which directors are to be elected, a committee on nominations consisting of not less
than five nor more than eleven members who shall be selected from different sections of the project
area so as to insure equitable representation. No member of the board of directors may serve on
such committee.

The committee, keeping in mind the principle of geographical representation, shall prepare
and post at the principal office of the Cooperative at least sixty (60) days before the meeting a list
of nominations for directors, comprised of at least two nominees per vacancy from each region or
area of the Cooperative having one or more vacancies on the board. Any fifteen or more members
acting together may make other nominations by petition not less than forty-five (45) days prior to

32



the meeting and the Secretary shall post such nominations at the same place the list of nominations
made by the committee is posted. The Secretary shall mail with the notice of the meeting or
separately, but at least seven days before the date of the meeting, a statement of the number of
directors to be elected and the names and addresses of the candidates, specifying separately the
nominations made by the committee on nominations and also the nominations made by petition, if
any. Additional nominations made by petition shall be for the respective region having vacancies
on the board to be filled at the annual election. At the meeting, members shall each cast one vote
for every vacancy in each region. If, for example, there are two vacancies in the Northern Region,
each member may cast one vote for each of two nominees on the list, for a total of two votes. The
nominee, or in the case of multiple vacancies, nominees, in each region receiving the most votes
cast shall be deemed elected to the board of directors. In the multiple vacancy example, that would
mean that the nominee receiving the most, and the nominee receiving the second most votes would
become directors. Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, failure to comply with any
of the provisions of this section shall not affect in any manner whatsoever the validity of any
election of directors.

Such regions and the area of each such region are numbered and defined as follows:

1. Northern Region
Schoharie County — Towns of Gilboa, Jefferson and Summit
Delaware County — Towns of Davenport, Harpersfield and Stamford

Otsego County — Town of Maryland

2. Central Region

Delaware County — Towns of Bovina, Delhi, Franklin, Hamden, Kortright and
Meredith

3. Southern Region

Delaware County — Towns of Andes, Colchester, Masonville, Middletown, Sidney,
Tompkins and Walton.

Chenango County — Town of Bainbridge

Section 4. Removal of Directors by Members. Any member may bring charges against a
director by filing such charges in writing with the Secretary, together with a petition signed by at
least ten per centum of the members and request the removal of such director by reason thereof.
The director against whom such charges have been brought shall be informed in writing of the
charges at least five days prior to the meeting at which the charges are to be considered and shall
have an opportunity at the meeting to be heard in person or by counsel and to present evidence in
respect to the charges; and the person or persons bringing the charges against him or her shall have
the same opportunity. The question of the removal of such director shall be considered and voted
upon at the next regular or special meeting of the members and any vacancy created by such
removal shall be filled in accordance with Section 6 hereunder.

33



Section 5. Removal of Directors by the Board of Directors. The majority of the board of
directors, acting pursuant to a duly made and seconded motion at a duly noticed regular or special
meeting of the board of directors, may remove a director from the board if that director has failed
to meet an objective qualification or requirement prescribed by these bylaws. The director against
whom such charges have been brought shall be informed in writing of the charges at least five
days prior to the meeting at which the charges are to be considered and shall have an opportunity
at the meeting to be heard in person or by counsel and to present evidence in respect to the charges.
The question of the removal of such director shall be considered and voted upon at the next regular
or special meeting of the board of directors and any vacancy created by such removal may be filled
in accordance with Section 6 of these bylaws.

Section 6. Vacancies. A vacancy occurring in the board of directors may be filled by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors. The director appointed in accordance
with this paragraph must meet the director qualifications as set out in Article IV, Section 2. The
appointed director may serve for a term ending no later than the next annual meeting of the
members. In cases where the term of the vacated seat would have extended beyond the next annual
meeting of the members, a special election shall be held at the next annual meeting of the members
to fulfill the unexpired portion of the term of the director in respect of whom the vacancy occurs.

Section 7. Compensation. Directors as such shall not receive any salary for their services.
However, by resolution a fixed sum may be paid for each day or portion thereof spent on
Cooperative business such as attendance at meetings, conferences, and training programs or
performing committee assignments as authorized by the board. If authorized by the board, directors
may also be reimbursed for expenses actually and necessarily incurred in carrying out such
Cooperative business or granted a reasonable per diem allowance by the board in lieu of detailed
accounting for some of their expense. No director shall receive compensation for serving the
Cooperative in any other capacity nor shall any close relative of a director receive compensation
for serving the Cooperative unless the payment of compensation shall be specifically authorized
by a vote of the members or the service by such directors or close relative have been certified by
the board as an emergency measure.

Section 8. Employment of Former Directors by the Cooperative. Former directors shall
not be employed by the Cooperative for at least thirty-six (36) months after completing their
service as a director.

ARTICLE V
Meetings of Directors

Section 1. Regular Meetings. A regular meeting of the board of directors shal-may be
held without notice other than this bylaw, immediately after, and at the same place as, the annual
meeting of the members. A regular meeting of the board of directors shall also be held menthly
periodically at such time and place in Delhi—Delaware—County—New York—State,—or—where
desirable—in—anether-a township in which the Cooperative conducts business as the board of
directors may provide by resolution. Such regular menthh+-meetings may be held without notice
other than such resolution fixing the time and place thereof.

34



Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the board of directors may be called by
the President or by any three directors, and it shall thereupon be the duty of the Secretary to cause
notice of such meeting to be given as hereinafter provided. The President or the directors calling
the meeting shall fix the time and place for the holding of the meeting.

Section 3. Notice of Directors Meetings. Written notice of the time, place and purpose of
any special meeting of the board of directors shall be delivered not less than two days previous
thereto, either personally or by regular or electronic mail or facsimile, by or at the direction of the
Secretary, or upon a default in duty by the Secretary, by the President, or the directors calling the
meeting, to each director. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited
in the United States mail addressed to the director at his address as it appears on the records of the
Cooperative, with postage thereon prepaid. If given by electronic mail or facsimile, notice shall
be deemed to be delivered on the day of transmission to such last known address or number.

Section 4. Allowance of and Limitations on Telephonic Participation. Any one or more
members of the board of directors may participate in a meeting of such board by means of a
conference telephone or similar telephonic communication equipment allowing all persons
participating in the meeting to hear each other and such participation by telephonic means shall
constitute presence at such meeting. Notwithstanding the allowance of telephonic participation of
any one or more member of the board of directors at any given meeting, each member of the board
of directors shall appear in person for at least 9 regular meetings of the board of directors in each
year of his or her term, where a term year starts and ends at an annual meeting of the members.

Section 5. Quorum. A majority of the board of directors shall constitute a quorum,
provided, that if less than such majority of the directors is present at said meeting, a majority of
the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time; and provided further, that the
Secretary shall notify any absent directors of the time and place of such adjourned meeting. The
act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the
act of the board of directors.

ARTICLE VI
Officers

Section 1. Number. The officers of the Cooperative shall be a President, Vice-President,
Secretary and Treasurer and such other officers as may be determined by the board of directors
from time to time. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person.

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The officers shall be elected, by ballot, annually
by and from the board of directors at the meeting of the board of directors held directly after the
annual meeting of the members. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, such
election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. Each officer shall hold office until
the first meeting of the board of directors following the next succeeding annual meeting of the
members or until his successor shall have been elected and shall have qualified. A vacancy in any
office shall be filled by the board of directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 3. Removal of Officers and Agents by Directors. Any officer or agent elected or
appointed by directors may be removed by the board of directors whenever in its judgment the

10

35



best interests of the Cooperative will be served thereby. In addition, any member of the
Cooperative may bring charges against an officer by filing such charges in writing with the
Secretary, together with a petition signed by ten per centum of the members, and request the
removal of the particular officer by reason thereof. The officer against whom such charges have
been brought shall be informed in writing of the charges at least five days prior to the meeting at
which the charges are to be considered and shall have an opportunity at the meeting to be heard in
person or by counsel and present evidence in respect to the charges; and the person or persons
bringing the charges against him or her shall have the same opportunity. The question of the
removal of such officer shall be considered and voted upon at the next regular or special meeting
of the members.

Section 4. President. The President shall:

@) be the principal officer of the Cooperative, and, unless otherwise determined by the
members of the board of directors, shall preside at all meetings of the members and
the board of directors;

(b) sign, with the Secretary, certificates of membership, the issue of which shall have
been authorized by the board of directors or the members, and may sign any deeds,
mortgages, deeds of trust, notes, bonds, contracts or other instruments authorized
by the board of directors to be executed, except in cases in which the signing and
the execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the board of directors or by
these bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Cooperative, or shall be required
by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and

(c) In general perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties
as may be prescribed by the board of directors from time to time.

Section 5. Vice President. In the absence of the President, or in the event of his inability
or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the President and when so acting,
shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice-
President shall also perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her
by the board of directors.

Section 6. Secretary. The Secretary shall:

@) keep the minutes of the meetings of the members and of the board of directors
stored or available on the premises in a media provided for that purpose;

(b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with these bylaws or as required
by law;

(c) be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the Cooperative and affix
the seal of the Cooperative to all certificates of membership prior to the issue

thereof and to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the Cooperative
under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws;

(d) keep a register of the names and post office addresses of all members;

11

36



(e) sign, with the President, certificates of membership, the issue of which shall have
been authorized by the board of directors of the members;

)] have general charge of the books of the Cooperative in which a record of the
members is kept;

(9) keep on file at all times a complete copy of the Cooperative bylaws containing all
amendments thereto, which copy shall always be open to the inspection of any
member at the office of the Cooperative and on the Cooperative’s website, and at
the expense of the Cooperative, forward a copy of the bylaws and of all
amendments thereto to each member, upon written request therefore; and

(h) in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties
as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the board of directors.

Section 7. Treasurer. The treasurer shall:

@) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the
Cooperative;

(b) be responsible for the receipt of and the issuance of receipts for moneys due and
payable to the Cooperative from any source whatsoever, and for the deposit of all
such moneys in the name of the Cooperative in such bank or banks as shall be
selected in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws;

(c) in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other
duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the board of directors.

Section 8. Chief Executive Officer. The board of directors may appoint a Chief
Executive Officer who may be, but who shall not be required to be, a member of the Cooperative.
The Chief Executive Officer shall perform such duties and shall exercise such authority as the
board of directors may from time to time vest in him or her.

Section 9. Compensation. The powers, duties and compensation of any officers, agents
and employees shall be fixed by the board of directors, subject to the provisions of these bylaws
with respect to compensation for directors and close relatives of directors.

Section 10. Reports. The officers of the Cooperative shall submit at each annual meeting
of the members reports covering the business of the Cooperative for the previous fiscal year. Such
reports shall set forth the condition of the Cooperative at the close of such fiscal year.

ARTICLE VII
Non-Profit Operation and Capital
Section 1. Definitions. As used in this Article,

(a) “Authorized Early Retirement” shall mean the Retirement of Patronage Capital

12

37



Credits prior to the time such capital would otherwise be generally retired to
current and former Patrons under provisions of these bylaws.

(b) “Patron” shall mean (1) a member in accordance with the provisions of these
By-laws, (2) a non-member purchasing electric energy and (3) a non-member
to whom the Cooperative furnishes goods or services, other than electric energy,
on a patronage basis as evidenced by Board policies, Board resolutions or
contract.

(c

~

“Patronage Capital Credits” shall mean the amounts allocated to and
contributed by the Patron to the Cooperative as capital.

«d

~

"Patronage" shall mean the quantity or value of the goods or services purchased
by the Patrons during the fiscal year and used by the Cooperative for allocating
Patronage Capital Credits in a proportionate manner to each Patron. With
respect to the furnishing of electric energy, the patronage of each Patron is
measured on the basis of the proportionality of the revenue billed by the
Cooperative to the individual Patron for electric energy with respect to the total
revenue billed by the Cooperative to all Patrons for electric energy. With
respect to the furnishing of goods and services on a patronage basis, other than
electric energy, the patronage of each Patron is measured separately for each
such good or service and on the basis of the proportionality of the revenue billed
by the Cooperative for such good or service to the individual Patron with respect
to the total revenue billed by the Cooperative to all Patrons for such good or
service.

(e) “Retirement” shall mean the redemption and payment in cash or other property
of allocated Patronage Capital Credits to the Patrons and former Patrons to
whom such amounts were previously allocated.

Section 2. Interest or Dividend on Capital Prohibited. The Cooperative shall at all times
be operated on a cooperative non-profit basis for the mutual benefits of its Patrons. No interest or
dividends shall be paid or payable by the Cooperative on any capital furnished by its Patrons.

Section 3. Patronage Capital Contributions, Allocations and Retirements, in
Connection with Furnishing Electric Energy.

(@) In the furnishing of electric energy the Cooperative’s operations shall be so conducted
that all Patrons will through their Patronage furnish capital for the Cooperative.

(b) In order to induce Patronage and to assure that the Cooperative will operate on a non-
profit basis the Cooperative is obligated to account on a Patronage basis to all its
Patrons for all amounts received and receivable from and directly related to the
furnishing of electric energy in excess of operating costs and expenses properly
chargeable against the furnishing of electric energy (hereinafter referred to as “the
Electric Margin”). The Cooperative’s accounting methods for determining the Electric
Margin and the amount of patronage capital to be allocated will substantially comply

13



with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, federal and New
York State tax law as it applies to electric cooperatives, and with the requirements of
Article XI of these bylaws.

(c) All Electric Margins are received with the understanding that they are furnished by the

Patrons as capital. The Cooperative is obligated to allocate on the basis of Patronage
and contribute as a credit to a capital account for each Patron all such amounts.

(d) Provided, however, if costs and expenses exceed the amounts received and receivable

from and directly related to the furnishing of electric energy, hereinafter referred to as
“loss”, then the board of directors shall have the authority, under accepted accounting
practices, loan covenants, and federal and New York State tax law as it applies to
electric cooperatives, to prescribe the accounting procedures under which such loss
may be addressed.

(e) The books and records of the Cooperative shall be set up and kept in such a manner

®

that at the end of each fiscal year the amount of capital, if any, so allocated to each
Patron is clearly reflected and credited in an appropriate record to the capital account
of each Patron, and the Cooperative shall within a reasonable time after the close of the
fiscal year notify each Patron of the amount of capital so allocated to his account. All
such amounts allocated to the capital account of any Patron shall have the same status
as though they had been paid to the Patron in cash and the Patron had then furnished
the Cooperative corresponding amounts for capital.

In the event of dissolution or liquidation of the Cooperative, after all outstanding
indebtedness of the Cooperative shall have been paid, outstanding Patronage Capital
Credits shall be retired without priority on a pro rata basis before any payments are
made on account of property rights of members. If, at any time prior to dissolution or
liquidation, the board of directors shall determine that the financial condition of the
Cooperative will not be impaired thereby, the capital then allocated and credited to the
Patrons' or former Patrons’ accounts may be generally retired in full or in part. Subject
to sound business and management practices, the timing and amount of such
Retirements are at the discretion of the board of directors. Provided, however, any such
Retirements of capital shall be made in order of priority according to the year in which
the capital was allocated and credited, the capital first received by the Cooperative
being first retired. In no event, however, may any such capital be retired unless, after
the proposed Retirement, the capital of the Cooperative shall equal at least thirty per
centum (30%) of the total assets of the Cooperative EXCEPT that if, after the proposed
Retirement, the capital of the Cooperative shall be less than thirty per centum (30%) of
the total assets of the Cooperative, a Retirement of Patronage Capital Credits may
nonetheless be made up to but not more than 25% of the net margins received in the
previous year less the amount of Authorized Early Patronage Capital Credit
Retirements as defined herein.

(9) When the Patronage Capital Credits of any Patron no longer receiving service from the

Cooperative comes to a total amount of less than a fixed sum determined by the board
of directors, the same shall be retired in full with such retirements made only when and

14

39



at the same time that general retirement to other Patrons is made.

(h) When such retirements of capital are made to the patrons, the Cooperative shall be

(i)

obligated to pay to each Patron or former Patron his share of the capital so retired in
accordance with these By-laws in whatsoever manner (i.e. cash, check or bill credit)
that the board of directors determines most efficient and convenient. The board of
directors may also establish a nominal fixed amount below which a check shall not be
issued and the amount of such retired but unpaid Patronage Capital Credits will be paid
in the first following year when the total amount of Patronage Capital Credits
qualifying for retirement exceeds that nominal amount set by the board of directors,
including the amount carried over. Regardless of the nominal fixed amount set by the
board of directors, however, a check shall be issued to a former Patron if all such
retirements fully retires the capital credits balance of such former Patron.

The board of directors, acting under policies of general application or as may be
negotiated from time to time, may approve an Authorized Early Retirement. Provided,
however, the payment portion of such Authorized Early Retirement shall be on a
discounted and net present value basis in order to reflect the time value of money due
to the early retirement of said Patronage Capital Credits. For purposes of Authorized
Early Retirements, net present value shall consider the following factors:

(1) amarket based discount interest rate and

(2) adiscount period of no greater than the time between the Authorized Early
Retirement and the normal expected retirement date of those Patronage
Capital Credits.

The difference between the total of the amount of Patronage Capital Credits retired and
the cash payment of such Authorized Early Retirement shall be considered a
contribution of capital to and part of the net savings of the Cooperative.

(i) Notwithstanding any provision of these bylaws, the board of directors, at its discretion,

shall have the power, at any time upon the death of any Patron or former Patron, if the
legal representatives of his estate shall request in writing that the capital allocated to
any such Patron be retired as an Authorized Early Retirement, to retire capital allocated
to any such person immediately upon such terms and conditions as the board of
directors, acting under policies of general application, and the legal representatives of
such Patron's estate shall agree upon; provided, however, that the financial condition
of the Cooperative will not be impaired thereby.

(k) The Cooperative, before retiring and paying any capital credited to any Patron’s or

former Patron’s account, shall deduct therefrom any amount owing by such Patron or
former Patron to the Cooperative; the right of offset applies to the amount retired and
approved for payment. As method for implementing the right of offset for amounts
owed the Cooperative and notwithstanding any provision of these bylaws, the board
of directors, at its discretion, shall also have the power after termination of service to

15

40



a Patron to recover amounts owed the Cooperative through an Authorized Early
Retirement of Patronage Capital Credits of any such Patron immediately upon such
terms and conditions as the board of directors, acting under policies of general
application shall agree upon. The amount retired for such a Patron shall be no more
than the amount owed the Cooperative and shall be applied to such amount owed.
Patronage Capital Credits of such Patron in excess of amounts owed the Cooperative
shall remain allocated and credited in the capital account of such Patron.

(I) Retired Patronage Capital Credits, which have not been claimed by the respective
Patron or former Patron shall constitute an irrevocable assignment and contribution to
the Cooperative, after reasonable effort to locate said Patron or former Patron. The
assignment and contribution shall be added to the Cooperative’s net savings. Mailing
of a check or notice of the availability of a check to the last known address of a Patron
or former Patron by first class mail and publication of the list of Patrons or former
Patrons having unclaimed Patronage Capital Credits on the website and/or newsletter
of the Cooperative for a period of three years shall be deemed reasonable effort to
locate said Patron or former Patron.

(m) Subject to the right of offset for any amounts owed the Cooperative, however, a Patron
or former Patron, may at any time irrevocably assign their Patronage Capital Credits
back to the Cooperative. Such irrevocable assignment shall be part of the Cooperative’s
net savings.

(n) Subject to the right of offset for any amounts owed the Cooperative, unretired
Patronage Capital Credits of a Patron or former Patron shall be assignable on the books
of the Cooperative only on such terms and conditions and under such circumstances
the board of directors, acting under policies of general application and the laws of the
State of New York, shall direct. Nothing contained herein shall also give unto any
Patron a vested right to assign any part of such Patronage Capital Credits.

Section 4. Patronage Capital Credits from Associated Organizations. If the Cooperative
is @ member, Patron or owner of an entity or organization from which the Cooperative uses or
purchases a good or service, which is used in or directly related to the furnishing of electric energy
and other goods or services on a patronage basis to its Patrons, and from which the Cooperative
is allocated a capital credit or similar amount, then as determined by the board of directors and
consistent with this Bylaw, the Cooperative may separately identify and allocate on the basis of
Patronage to the Cooperative’s Patrons this capital credit or similar amount allocated by the entity
or organization. If the Cooperative separately identified and allocated to its Patrons such Patronage
Capital Credits received from an entity or organization, the Cooperative may retire and pay such
Patronage Capital Credits only after the entity or organization retires and pays the Patronage
Capital Credits or similar amounts to the Cooperative. Any such Patronage Capital Credits
allocated and retired pursuant to this Section 4 shall be allocated and retired using methods
substantially consistent with those methods described in section 3 above.

Section 5. Patronage Capital Contributions, Allocations and Retirements, in
Connection with Furnishing Other Goods or Services. In the event that the Cooperative should
engage in the business of furnishing goods or services other than electric energy, all amounts

16

41



received and receivable therefrom which are in excess of costs and expenses properly chargeable
against the furnishing of such goods or services shall, insofar as permitted by law, be prorated
annually on a Patronage basis and allocated to each Patron. Patronage capital allocated and retired
pursuant to this Section 5 shall be made consistent with the following:

(@ The board of directors shall determine to whom such other goods or services are
provided on a Patronage basis, whether to members only or to both members and non-
members alike. All such determinations, required from time to time under this Section
5 and made by the board of directors, shall be through applicable policies, resolutions
or other contractual authority.

(b) The board of directors shall have the authority under accepted accounting practices,
loan covenants and tax law to prescribe the manner in which losses derived from such
other goods or services may be handled.

(c) The retirement of Patronage Capital Credits allocated to such Patrons shall be paid to
said Patrons using methods substantially consistent with those methods described in
section 3 above.

(d) To the extent other goods or services are provided to non-members on a hon-patronage
basis, the net earnings of which shall be retained as part of the Cooperative’s net
savings.

Section 6. Net Earnings from Non-patronage Business. Revenue, income and gains in
excess of expenses and losses from the provision of a good or service not provided to the patrons
on a Patronage basis, including earnings or losses from a subsidiary corporation, insofar as
permitted by law, may be used by the Cooperative to offset any losses incurred during the current
or any prior year, to retain as capital not assignable to the members except in the event of
dissolution of the Cooperative and to the extent not needed for these purposes, allocated to the
patrons on a Patronage basis at the discretion of the board of directors.

Section 7. Net Savings. Unallocated reserves and retained capital not currently
distributable to the Patrons as Patronage Capital Credits are subject to property rights of members
and are subject to use by the Cooperative consistent with its obligations of prudent financial
management. Notwithstanding other provisions of these bylaws and insofar as permitted by law,
such amounts are available to offset any current or future loss of the Cooperative and may be
comprised of, but not limited to:

(a) Capital arising from the forfeiture of membership fees, assignments of capital made
by a Patron or former Patron and from donations authorized under federal lender
guidelines,

(b) The difference between the amounts of Patronage Capital Credits in a Patron’s account
and the discounted amount paid out for Authorized Early Retirements,

(c)The net earnings from non-patronage business, and

(d) Unclaimed retirements of Patronage Capital Credits.

17



Section 8. Patron Agreement. The Patrons of the Cooperative, by dealing with the
Cooperative, acknowledge that the terms and provisions of the articles of incorporation, bylaws,
policies, rules and regulations shall constitute and be a contract between the Cooperative and each
Patron, and both the Cooperative and the Patrons are bound by such contract, as fully as though
each Patron had individually signed a separate instrument containing such terms and provisions.
The provisions of this article of the bylaws shall be called to the attention of each Patron of the
Cooperative by providing a copy of these bylaws to each new Patron and by posting a copy of
these bylaws to the website of the Cooperative.

ARTICLE VIII
Disposition of Property

The board of directors of the Cooperative shall have full power and authority, without
authorization by the members thereof, to authorize the execution and delivery of a mortgage or
mortgages or a deed or deeds of trust of, or the pledging or encumbering of, any or all of the
property, assets, rights, privileges, licenses, franchises and permits of the Cooperative, whether
acquired or to be acquired, and wherever situated, as well as the revenues and income therefrom,
all upon such terms and conditions as the board of directors shall determine, to secure any
indebtedness of the Cooperative to United States of America or any agency or instrumentally
thereof, or to a national financing institution, organized on a cooperative plan for the purpose of
financing its members' programs, projects, and undertakings, in which the Cooperative holds
membership.

The Cooperative may not otherwise sell, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of or
encumber all or a substantial portion of its property unless such sale, mortgage, lease or other
disposition or encumbrance is authorized by the affirmative vote of TWO THIRDS of those
members of the Cooperative.

ARTICLE IX
Seal

The corporate seal of the Cooperative shall be in the form of a circle and shall have
inscribed thereon the name of the Cooperative and the words "Corporate Seal, New York."

ARTICLE X
Financial Transactions

Section 1. Contracts. Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, the board of directors
may authorize any officer or officers, employee, agent or agents to enter into any contract or
execute and deliver any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Cooperative, and such
authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 2. Checks, Drafts, etc. Except as otherwise provided by law or in these bylaws,
all checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money and all notes, bonds or other evidences
of indebtedness issued in the name of the Cooperative shall be signed by such officer, officers,

18

43



agent or agents, employee or employees of the Cooperative and in such manner as shall from time
to time be determined by resolution of the board of directors.

Section 3. Deposits. All funds of the Cooperative shall be deposited from time to time to
the credit of the Cooperative in such bank or banks as the board of directors may select.

Section 4. Change in Rates. Reserved for future use.

Section 5. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Cooperative shall begin on the first day of
January each year and end on the thirty-first day of December of that year.

ARTICLE XI
Miscellaneous

Section 1. Membership in Other Organizations. The Cooperative shall not become a
member of any other organization without an affirmative vote of the members at a meeting called
as provided in these bylaws, and the notice of said meeting shall specify that action is to be taken
upon such proposed membership as an item of business provided, however, that the Cooperative
shall, upon the authorization of the board of directors alone, have full power and authority to
become a member of other cooperatives or corporations or to own stock therein for the purpose of
engaging in or supporting rural electrification.

Section 2. Waiver of Notice. Any member or director may waive in writing, any notice
of a meeting required to be given by these bylaws. The attendance of a member or director at any
meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting by such member or director, except in
case a member or director shall attend a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the
transaction of any business because the meeting shall not have been lawfully called or convened.

Section 3. Rules and Regulations. The board of directors shall have the power to make
and adopt such policies, rules and regulations not inconsistent with law, the articles of
incorporation or these bylaws, as it may deem advisable for the management, administration and
regulation of the business and affairs of the Cooperative.

Section 4. Accounting System and Reports. The board of directors shall cause to be
established and maintained a complete accounting system which shall conform so long as the
Cooperative is indebted to the Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof, to such
accounting system as may from time to time be designated by the Administrator of the Rural
Utilities Service of the Department of Agriculture of the United States of America. All accounts
of the Cooperative shall be examined by a finance committee of the directors appointed by the
board of directors which shall meet periodically, but not less than two times per year, and render
reports to the board of directors at regular meetings of the board of directors. The board of directors
shall also after the close of each fiscal year cause to be made a full and complete audit of the
accounts, books and financial condition of the Cooperative as of the end of such fiscal year. Such
audit reports shall be submitted to the members at the annual meeting next following the close of
such fiscal year.

19

44



ARTICLE XII [Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Mediation and Arbitration Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic, No underline

If a controversy or claim arises out of the Cooperative’s provision of a Cooperative service, the*——( Formatted: Justified

(
[Formatted: Font: Not Italic
(

Cooperative’s exercise of its rights under these bylaws or the terms of membership, or a Member’s
use of a Cooperative service, the parties shall first try to settle the dispute through negotiation. If
the dispute is not settled by negotiation, and if requested by the Cooperative or the Member, then
the Cooperative and the Member shall try in good faith to settle the dispute by mediation conducted
by a neutral third person, acceptable to both parties. The mediator shall have no power to impose
a decision if all of the parties do not agree to settle the dispute, but shall help the parties reach an
agreement by focusing on the key issues in a case, exchanging information between the parties
and exploring options for settlement. If the dispute is not settled after mediation, the controversy
or claim shall be resolved by arbitration administered pursuant to the rules of the American
Arbitration Association and the judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered
in any court having jurisdiction. Controversies and claims must be settled through individual
arbitration, and not through collective or class action arbitration. This section does not apply to
controversies over the acquisition of rights-of way or the right of the Cooperative to construct,
operate, inspect, repair, maintain, relocate, improve, reconstruct, and replace its facilities within
any of its rights-of-way.

ARTICLE XII1
Amendments
These bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed by the members at any regular or special

meeting, provided the notice of such meeting shall have contained a copy of the proposed
alteration, amendment or repeal.

20

45



&/DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

CEO/GM Report
June 2023

Government Relations and Outside Organizations:

Grants:

Rate Design:

CEO Gasstrom and President Pick attended NYSRECA monthly zoom conference June 2.

CEO Gasstrom attended a call with NYPA representative to attempt to gain clarity on HFPTCC's
onlJune 6.

CEO Gasstrom attended the RESMA summer meeting representing the Northeast Association
June 7-9.

CEO Gasstrom attending a birthday/fundraiser event for Assembly Tague on 6/15.

DCEC is still waiting for responses on ARC POWER grant applications.

DCEC submitted an application for the DOL WORC grant.

NRECA was not encouraged to submit a full application for an ERA grant. DCEC was a part of a
consortium of coops working with NRECA on this opportunity.

DCEC is evaluating grant applications by creating an energy efficiency consortium of farmers in
our service territory to apply for a combined energy efficiency grant. Ryan is leading this effort.

DCEC staff is exploring adding “Residential Demand” as an informational field to member bills.

Community Interaction:

CEO Gasstrom attended a ceremony for DCMO BOCES mentors/mentees commemorating a
successful inaugural year for the program.

CEO Gasstrom attended Chamber of Commerce meeting at Catskill Junction in Stamford in Delhi
to network with other local business leaders.

CEO Gasstrom was appointed to a director seat with the Delaware County Chamber of
Commerce for a one-year term.

DCEC has scheduled and is taking reservations for a member advocacy meeting on whether we
should be budgeting specific dollars for storm mutual aid per member request at the 2022
Annual Meeting.

5 North Depot Street, P.O. Box 471, Delhi, NY 13753
Telephone: (607) 746-2341 Fax: (607) 746-7548 www.dce.coop

46



NEWYORK | NY Power | Canal

ATE OF

OPPORTUNITY. Authority Corporation

HFPTCC Overview & NYISO’s HFPTCC
Extension Product Offer for Muni/Coops 2023

1

Congestion and Transmission Congestion Contracts

=  Whatis congestion?

— ltis a charge by the NYISO that appears on your electric invoice. In simple terms, power lines,
like roads can only handle a certain amount of traffic. As electric traffic increases, the cost to use
the line increase as well — this is congestion

= What are common causes of increased congestion?

Plant outages

Line outages

Extreme temperatures

Power having to flow throughout the state to ensure reliability for the entire grid

=  What are Transmission Congestion Contracts (TCCs)?

— ltis a financial instrument offered by the NYISO that has the potential to act as a hedge against
congestion charges.

— The path in question (Point of Injection and Point of Withdrawal) and the demand for the line over
time are the main components that make up the overall cost of a TCC

N

47



Transmission Agreements Over the Years

Pre-existing transmission agreements

Grandfathered Transmission
Congestion Contracts

Historic Fixed Price Transmission
Congestion Contracts

NYISO establishes the HFPTCC
Extension Product

NYISO offers NYPA the HFPTCC
Extension Product for Muni/Coops

Historic Fixed Price Transmission Congestion Contracts

Current Request New Offer Pricing

NYPA offers this HFPTCC Extension Product on

behalf of its Full Requirement Muni/Coop + Niagara -> Zone C: 23 HFPTCCs @ $25,485 per HFPTCC
USRI, PR Sl Ao IR - Fitzpatrick -> Zone C: 2 HFPTCCs @ $26,211.03 per HFPTCG
customers have paid and a decision is needed as to )

whether the customers would like to purchase. » Niagara -> Zone E: 83 HFPTCCs @ $25,468.39 per HFPTCC

« Fitzpatrick -> Zone E: 14 HFPTCCs @ $26,194.42 per HFPTCC

Background HFPTCC Extension Product 2022 Pricing and Comparison

The HFPTCC Extension Product was offered after NYPA's » Niagara -> Zone C: $9553.81per HFPTCC, 167% increase from LY
HFPTCC’s expired (primarily 2018 with a few exceptions) «  Fitzpatrick -> Zone C: $20,018.06 per HFPTCC, 31% increase from LY
* 151 MWs of HFPTCC Extension Product eligible for + Niagara -> Zone E: $8,003.44 per HFPTCC, 218% increase from LY

renewal

. i i - N Y i
Pricing fluctuates year to year based off of NYISO auction Fitzpatrick -> Zone E: $18,476.69 per HFPTCC, 42% increase from LY

prices
» Customers can elect to participate on a year-to-year basis
« Acts as an informal hedge against congestion charges

48



Niagara to Central (Zone C)

$3.50

$3.00 $2.92
L]

$2.50

$2.00

$1.70 $1.68
° ° $1.58
L]
$1.50 $1.40
L $1.29
L]
$1.09
°
$1.00
$0.71 $0.72
° $0.65
$0.50
S I i

Summer 2017 - Winter 2017-2018 Summer 2018 - Winter 2018-2019 Summer 2019 - Winter 2019-2020 Summer 2020 - Winter 2020-2021 Summer2021- Winter 2021-2022 Summer 2022 - Winter 2022-2023 Summer 2023 -
Winter 2017-2018 - Summer 2018 Winter 2018-2019 - Summer 2019 Winter 2019-2020 - Summer 2020 Winter 2020-2021 - Summer 2021 Winter 2021-2022 - Summer 2022 Winter 2022-2023 - Summer 2023 Winter 2023-2024
*NYISO DAM data stops at
= DAM Path Congestion ($/MWh) ® One Year TCC Auction Average ($/MWh) 3/31/23

NIA to Zone C

* NYPA forecast based on the historical relationship between source and sink
* Actual congestion so far (Nov ’22 — Apr’23) = $1.82
* Forecasted congestion (Nov 23- Oct 24) = $1.82

49




$5.00

$4.50

$4.00

$3.50

$3.00

$2.50

$2.00

$1.50

$1.00

$0.50

hid

Fitzpatrick to Central (Zone C)

$4.58

$2.98
$1.19

*
L]
$1.52
L ]
. $1.14 $1.11 $1.14 I
| . I
I I I $-

Summer 2017 - Winter 2017-2018 Summer 2018 - Winter 2018-2019 Summer 2019 - Winter 2019-2020 Summer2020- Winter 2020-2021 Summer 2021- Winter 2021-2022 Summer2022- Winter 2022-2023 Summer 2023 -
Winter 2017-2018 - Summer 2018 Winter 2018-2019 - Summer 2019 Winter 2019-2020 - Summer 2020 Winter 2020-2021 - Summer 2021 Winter 2021-2022 - Summer 2022 Winter 2022-2023 - Summer 2023 Winter 2023-2024
*NYISO DAM data stops at
= DAM Path Congestion ($/MWh) ® One Year TCC Auction Average ($/MWh) 3/31/23

Fitzpatrick to Zone C

* NYPA forecast based on the historical relationship between source and sink
* Actual congestion so far (Nov ’22 — Apr’23) = $2.96
* Forecasted congestion (Nov 23- Oct 24) = $2.27

50




$3.50

$3.00

$2.50

$2.00

$1.50

$1.00

$0.50

s

Niagara to Mohawk Valley (Zone E)

$2.98

$1.26 $1.27
L] L]
$1.02
. $0.92
L]
$0.72
L]
$0.56
° $0.48
. I
E B I -

Summer 2017 - Winter 2017-2018 Summer 2018 - Winter 2018-2019 Summer 2019 - Winter 2019-2020 Summer2020- Winter 2020-2021 Summer 2021- Winter 2021-2022 Summer2022- Winter 2022-2023 Summer 2023 -
Winter 2017-2018 - Summer 2018 Winter 2018-2019 - Summer 2019 Winter 2019-2020 - Summer 2020 Winter 2020-2021 - Summer 2021 Winter 2021-2022 - Summer 2022 Winter 2022-2023 - Summer 2023 Winter 2023-2024
*NYISO DAM data stops at
= DAM Path Congestion ($/MWh) ® One Year TCC Auction Average ($/MWh) 3/31/23

NIA to Zone E

* NYPA forecast based on the historical relationship between source and sink
* Actual Congestion (Nov ‘22 — Apr’23) = $1.88
* NYPA Forecasted Congestion (Nov 23- Oct 24) = $§1.02

Comments:

* Recent congestion spikes during cold snaps in Jan and Dec ‘22 and Feb 23
» Congestion outside those 3 months averaging below $1

* Zone E is winter peaking with growing load

* Market participants reacting by bidding up congestion price

10

51




Fitzpatrick to Mohawk Valley (Zone E)
$4.50

$4.17
°

$4.00

$3.50

$3.03
$3.00 [}

$2.50

$2.00
$1.50

$1.20

L4 $1.05 $1 07

$1.00 ° $0 87

SOvE
$0.50 $0.59

s

Summer 2017 - Winter 2017-2018 Summer 2018 - Winter 2018-2019 Summer 2019 - Winter 2019-2020 Summer 2020 - Winter 2020-2021 Summer 2021 - Winter 2021-2022 Summer 2022 - Winter 2022-2023 Summer 2023 -
Winter 2017-2018 - Summer 2018 Winter 2018-2019 - Summer 2019 Winter 2019-2020 -Summer 2020 Winter 2020-2021 - Summer 2021 Winter 2021-2022 - Summer 2022 Winter 2022-2023 - Summer 2023 Winter 2023-2024

*NYISO DAM data stops at
m DAM Path Congestion ($/MWh) ® One Year TCC Auction Average ($/MWh) 3/31/23

11

Customer Impacts of Current HFPTCC Extension Product

= Very much a timing issue
= Low energy prices and high congestion lead to a larger impact

= Higher energy prices and reduced congestion lead to smaller impact

12

52



NYISO Offering - HFPTCC Extension Product

One Year Fixed Price TCC that is offered only to holders of HFPTCCs that have expired

Offer provided 6-7 months prior to expiration

Price is a weighted average of the market-clearing prices from the most recently completed
one-year Sub-Auction rounds of a Centralized TCC Auction for the same POI & POW as the
previously held HFPTCCs.

Require annual renewal, but do not need to be purchased each year

So long as the documentation with the decision about accepting or declining the offer is
submitted in a timely manner, the offer will be made again for the next year — if not, the product
is relinquished forever

13

Timeline of New Offer

The offer from the NYISO for November 1, 2023 — October 31, 2024
25% payment due by July 12, 2023 (75% due by October 23, 2023)

It is critical for the documentation of the choice made to be submitted
so the opportunity to purchase the HFPTCC Extension Product
remains available

If customers elect not to participate, they will be subject to market
congestion prices, with no opportunity to offset some of those
congestion costs

14

53



DCEC

Delaware County

<

Electric Cooperative

CFO REPORT
May 24- June 20, 2023

FINANCE/ ACCOUNTING:
Rates:
¢ The management team continues to work through rate design and inputs for future rate change

Go Green:
* The Go Green program rate will need to be redeveloped to include increased future REC cost and the ability
to change and/or true up when necessary

Payroll/HR:

® The job description for a full time Payroll/HR Manager has been drafted and the position is expected to be
posted soon

Miscellaneous:
® Continuing to review procedures for accuracy, improvements, efficiencies, etc.
e Revising and creating the necessary Management Level Policies and Procedures for various financial items
such as reimbursements, other benefits, energy efficiency programs, etc.

54



&/DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

Operations Manager Update

Engineering & Operations:

* Notable Outages and Occurrences: No notable outages in period.

e Disconnections: Disconnects resumed the week of 6/5/23

e Right of Way Crew: In-house crew miles not available at time of report. Asplundh working along
Catskill Turnpike and adjacent roads in Kortright headed towards Meredith.

e Headquarters: No activity currently.

e Special Projects: Working on workplan with PSE and Paul De Andrea.

e Fleet Concerns: Truck 72 has returned to action following repairs. 2023 Dielectric testing
completed 6/12/23.

Safety Report:

® Injury Report: One incident since last report. As of now none are lost time.
e Safety Committee Activity: Actively working on safety manual updates.

Respectfully submitted Ryan Sullivan  6/19/23

55



&/DCEC

Delaware County
Electric Cooperative

Manager — System Planning, Job Training, and Safety Report
June 2023

e May 30th through June 9t we conducted a Basic climbing school for Otsego Electric
employees, Margaretville telephone, Delhi Telephone companies and our own Brandon
Tuttle. This was the first training of hopefully many in a series. The reason for the training
to have occurred is the fact that PREA was unable to accommodate both Otsego electric and
DCEC in the required training. We saw an opportunity to train our own employees closer to
home in conjunction with SUNY Delhi’s training yard. Steve Watkins and Jim Ellis helped
with the instruction of the students. We had 10 students participate in the training and
charged a fee and will give out a certificate to all passing members who participated in the
training.

o Brandon did very well in and out of the classroom and had the highest test score in
the group. | was very impressed with his desire to learn and make himself better in
all aspects of line work.

e We had a our yearly di-electric testing done on our bucket truck and diggers. All our trucks
passed which included the skidder bucket, the Tree Bucket and the Track digger. The tree
crew equipment is getting a bit older so it’s always a worry when that testing occurs to see if
it’s going to make another year. The testing includes energizing the equipment at 100,000
volts DC. They also did a strength test of our booms which is very important as well.

e FEDERATED TAILBOARD TRAINING -Lyndon Bailey (Bubba) visited the cooperative on June
21st and held a tailboard training course. This was for all line and tree crew members. It
was a 2-hour training session to discuss the importance of a good tailboard. He covered our
new tailboards that are in use currently for the lineman and hopefully this will help continue
tailboard growth.

e Henry has been very busy with new staking jobs. We had 9 new member services last
month and many additional service upgrades. The Bigger hollow job which was brought
about due to a broken pole in an off road location during a storm, ended up turning into a
11 pole job that needed us to work in conjunction with NYC watershed and the Delaware
County to obtain the easements necessary to relocate the line.

e Presently working on updates to some old work systems which include an update to the
Electric service installation procedure book, consolidating the work order, retirement work
order and reconnect slip into one piece of paperwork.

5 North Depot Street, P.O. Box 471, Delhi, NY 13753
Telephone: (607) 746-2341 Fax: (607) 746-7548 www.dce.coop
56



	06_2023 Director Comp.pdf
	Summary
	Burnett
	Furgol
	Menke
	Oles
	Pick
	J. Russell
	Wehmeyer




